
 

    

 

 

ALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE TO THE FLAG.  The Chairman, Norma Wells, called the meeting to 

Roger Therriault, Town Attorney; 
ichard Main, Budget Advisory Board; Roger Cote, Budget Advisory Board; Lori Pomelow, Budget 

Advisory Board; and approximately  
 

 

 
                  

    

 

Fern Larochelle, Jr., At Large 2010 
Charles Smith, At Large 2008 

Michael Bowie, At Large 2009  
Gina Mason, District 1 2010 
Janet Henry, District 1 2009 
Dale Crafts, District 2 2010 

Norma Wells, District 2 2009  

TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

AUGUST 5, 2008 

 
C
order and led the pledge of allegiance to the flag at 7:00 PM. 
  
ROLL CALL.  Members present were Councilors Wells, Smith, Bowie, Mason, Crafts, and 
Larochelle.  Councilor Henry was excused.  Also present were Stephen Eldridge, Town Manager; 
Ryan Leighton, Town Engineer; Gerald Samson, Assessor/CEO; 
R

50 citizens in the audience.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

MDOT UPLAND ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Jim Ferguson, MDOT Project Engineer briefly explained the status of Upland Road’s reconstruction 
project.  He said the project would cost $1,970,000 to complete.  He said $750,000 was now available 
and that he would be looking for the $1,220,000 balance to fund the rest of this project.  Lisbon’s 
portion will end up being 15%.  MDOT will place advertise for bids in the fall of 2009.  Right of way 
issues, clearing, and utility work would take place over the winter months and roadwork would 
start in the spring of 2010.  He said they would continue to take design changes for up to two more 
weeks and encouraged residents to call Steve Bodge at 624-3356 right away.  This plan will become 

nal in two weeks.  Residents can call Jim Ferguson, Steve Bodge, Steve Michaud, and Ryan 

d asked Mr. Trask to call MDOT later.  Several residents 
asked questions.  The public hearing closed at 40 PM.  The Chairman called for a ten minute 
recess.  The meeting resumed at 7:5

fi
Leighton for project information.   
 
Lee Trask requested the speed limit be lower.  Mr. Ferguson said that fell under the Traffic Division.  
Lee Trask requested someone place a deaf sign near his property to protect his father.  Mr. Ferguson 
said MDOT would place signs like these an

7:
0 PM.   

 
WINDMILL ORDINANCE 

 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  Mr. Samson explained the changes made to the windmill 
ordinance.  Richard Main said this ordinance was extremely restrictive, limiting the height of these 
towers and blades to 100ft.  He suggested the CEO issue these permits instead of requiring them to 
go through the conditional use permitting process.  Mr. Samson explained that the current process 
notifies neighbors who may want to have a chance to give their input into the approval process.  
Roger Cote recommended holding off to see what other technology might also be offered.  The 
Chairman closed the Public Hearing.  

 
SIGN ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. Mr. Samson said this amendment strikes the requirement 
that MDOT administer the provisions of this o nance.  He pointed out that the town would 
enforce this ordinance

rdi
.  The Chairman closed the Public Hearing. 

 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 August 5, 2008 

Latest Revision as of 9/4/2008 9:51:49 AM 

APPEALS BOARD ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 

The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   Mr. Samson explained the change and recommended 
the Council make the Appeals Board process consistent with the Planning Board process, thus 
eliminating the requirement that the town notify roperty owners within 250 feet.  The Chairman 
closed the Public Hearing. 

 p

 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  Mr. Samson recommended dropping the minimum 
frontage requirement from 75 feet to 50 feet per unit for a two-family dwelling under Section 70-
295(2)b.  He said this would be consistent with other sections of the Code Book.  The Chairman 
closed the Public Hearing. 

 
SET NOVEMBER 2008 POLLING LOCATIONS 

 
(VOTE 2008-124A) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to designate the gym 
at the MTM Center located at 18 School Street in Lisbon Falls for Ward/District 2 and the gym at the 
Superintendent’s Central Office at 19 Gartley Street in Lisbon Village for Ward/District 1.  Order 
passed – Vote 6-0. 

 

for Bob Cummins d/b/a TAP 
nterprises and Rick Tidwell d/b/a Northeast Ice Cream, plus one renewal Off Premise Catering 

Permit for the 
 

COUNCIL ORDERS, RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES 

WINDMILL ORDINANCE 

CONSENT AGENDA  
 
VOTE (2008-120) Councilor Smith, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve the minutes 
of July 15, 2008, and two renewal 6-Month Itinerant Vendor Permits 
E

Slovak Catholic Association.  Order passed – Vote 6-0. 

 
 

ed.  Councilor Bowie asked that 
aff talk to vendors to find out what is available so that the ordinance when adopted would be right 

from the beginning.   Item po
 

SIGN ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

(Final Reading) 
 

VOTE (2008-121) Councilor Bowie said he believed the State was developing a broader 
ordinance and thought Lisbon was going to try to incorporate some or all of it.  Richard Main said 
the State had not completed it yet.  Councilor Larochelle said changing this ordinance from 100’ foot 
overall tower height including blades to the tower being 100’ foot not including the blades would 
not be drastic, adding that the residential and commercial process would be different.  John 
Wierzbicki asked if these towers needed to comply with FAA regulations and said he was certain at 
some height a light would be required.  Councilor Bowie said this ordinance should cover the whole 
town and suggested further research and study at this time.  Roger Cote said a new spiral house top 
type of windmill is becoming available now and recommended the Council wait on this right now.  
Mr. Samson said anything not listed in a zone would be prohibit
st

stponed pending more information. 

 

amendment as presented (see attached).  Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilors 
arochelle, Smith, Bowie, Mason, Crafts, and Wells.  Nays:  None.  Order Passed - Vote 6-0 (First 

Reading)   
 

(First Reading)  
 

VOTE (2008-122) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Larochelle moved to adopt the sign 
ordinance 
L



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 August 5, 2008 

Latest Revision as of 9/4/2008 9:51:49 AM 

APPEALS BOARD ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

ance Amendment as presented (see attached).  Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilors 
arochelle, Smith, Bowie, Mason, Crafts, and Wells.  Nays:  None.  Order Passed - Vote 6-0 (First 

Reading) 
 

ZONING BOARD ORDI ANCE AMENDMENT

(First Reading)  
 

VOTE (2008-123) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to adopt the Appeals 
Board Ordin
L

N  

g 
board ordinance as presented (see attached).  V e By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilors Larochelle, 
Smith, Bowie, Mason, Crafts, and W - Vote 6-0 (First Reading). 

 

(First Reading) 
 

VOTE (2008-124) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to adopt the zonin
ot

ells.  Nays:  None.  Order Passed 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. ASSESSOR’S REPORT – TAX COMMITMENT 
 
Mr. Samson said he had committed the property taxes for this year and established the tax mil rate.  
He said property tax bills would probably be in the mail next week.  He said the new mil rate would 
be $26.65, which is $2.90 more than last year.  He said property taxes would be $290 more on an 

verage $100,000 home.  He pointed out that the School figures had gone up slightly from what he 
had a few months ago and that  $70,000 as well.   
a

 the overall amount raised went up about
 

B. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Eldridge announced that Diane Nadeau had been appointed to the Executive Board of the New 
England Library Association and the Maine Library Association.  He said the employee picnic went 
well with over 35 in attendance.  He pointed out that the Sewer Budget would be ready for the 
August 19th Council agenda.  He said he asked some departments to put together a short 

resentation for the Council to help keep the public and Council more informed, which should start 

MTM buildings since the cleaning bids came in way over what was budgeted.  He said 
e Town’s insurance bid should be going out soon once changes to the request for proposal are 

complete. 

oger Cote requested the Council address two conflict of interest issues and handed out packets to 

 he was a member of the Budget Advisory 
oard and Citizens of Lisbon.  He said, “We want the current 2008-2009 budget halted and 

ber and the School Committee should appoint one regular member and one 

p
in September.   
 
Mr. Eldridge informed the Council that he and Mrs. Hardy-Goddard was looking into setting up a 
heating fund funded by private contributions to help residents that may not qualify for General 
Assistance.  He said he was exploring the possibility of hiring a part time person to clean the Town 
Office and 
th

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
R
the Council; citing two previous votes taken by Councilors, which he believed, had been unethical.   
 
Mr. Cote said he was being pushed very hard to bring the conflict of interest issues pertaining to 
two town councilors to the Council’s attention.  He stated
B
readdressed…”  He remarked, “We want it done over.”  
 
Mr. Cote pointed out that Lisbon should have an ethics panel consisting of three regular voting 
members and two alternate members.  He said the Council should appoint two regular members 
and one alternate mem



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 August 5, 2008 

Latest Revision as of 9/4/2008 9:51:49 AM 

lternate member.  He asked the Council to appoint an ethics panel as established in the Code under 
Chapter 12 Section 3.   
 

RECREATION COMMITTEE

a

APPOINTMENTS 
 

 

d that she would be abstaining from this vote and would in no way 
attempt to influence the decision of this Council and then turned the meeting over to the Vice-

Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to appoint Diana 
ck and Carroll Curtis to the Recreation committee for three-year terms.  Order passed – Vote 5-0-1.  

wie mentioned that the other individual indicated he was interested in other boards 
nd checked off the MTM Board.  He suggested the Council consider this person for the MTM board 

OTE (2008-125A) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to appoint Ken Wells 

 
The Vice-Chairman turned the meetin an, Councilor Wells.  

BOARD OF APPEALS

Two 3-Yr Term Expiring 2011 
 
Councilor Wells announced that her husband Ken Wells had filed an application for appointment to 
the Recreation Committee an

, 
Chairman, Councilor Bowie. 

 
VOTE (2008-125) 
E
(Abstained:  Wells)   
 
Councilor Bo
a
vacancy. 
 
V
to the MTM Board.  Order passed – Vote 5-0-1.  (Abstaining:  Wells) 

g back over to the Chairm
 

 

OTE (2008-126) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to appoint Charles 

iriam Morgan-Alexander said she received a notice that there were two vacancies.  Councilor 
Wells said that they would da.   
 

time.  He said Lisbon residents would have to decide 
hether it was or was not in favor of consolidation, and that Lisbon’s meeting will be held here at 

uld be 

One 3-Yr Term Expiring 2011 
 

V
Lausier to the Board of Appeals for a three-year term.  Order passed – Vote 6-0. 
 
M

 double check on this and put it on the next agen

COUNCILOR COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Councilor Bowie said the PSAP Consolidation Committee was trying to schedule a communication 
consolidation presentation with Durham and Sabattus and Lisbon.  Because funding had been 
reduced, PSAPS throughout the different counties in the State had to be reduced.  Androscoggin 
County was supposed to go from three to one, but the committee petitioned to keep two and told 
the State that discussions were underway to move to a regional center to save money.  September 3 
is when this committee will have to take a final vote on what they want to recommend to the 
County Commissioners.  He encouraged attendance at the upcoming meeting and said that different 
options will be up for discussion at that 
w
the Lisbon Town Hall on August 25 or 26.  
 
Councilor Larochelle addressed the current conflict of interest concerns and pointed out that 
although a lot of research had gone into that presentation, he wished that the research had included 
all the work he does do free for the town.  He pointed out that since he had taken his oath, he has 
never voted on an item that he has benefited from at all.   He said that the cars parked in his 
driveway since have been worked on free and that he did not think doing work free wo



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 August 5, 2008

Latest Revision as of 9/4/2008 9:51:49 AM 

considered a conflict of interest.  If t op working on them immediately.  
He acknowledged that unfortunately many peopl ten look for downfalls not benefits. 

conded by Councilor Smith moved at 9:20 PM to 
 into Executive Session per 1 MRSA Section 405 (6) (a) to discuss Personnel Matters and (d) Labor 

Negotiations.   Order passed - Vote smissed the Council Secretary.  The 
ouncil came out of executive session at

 
VOTE (2007-129) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to adjourn at 9:50 PM.   
Order passed - Vote 6-0. 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Twila Lycette, Council Secretary

erk, Lifetime CCM 
 

 
These minutes are not verbatim. Cassette tapes are filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

 

hat is the case, he offered to st
e too of

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
VOTE (2008-127 & 128) Councilor Bowie, se
go

6-0.  The Chairman di
 9:50 PM. C

  
ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

 
Town Cl


